
creating our future together

Departrnent of Planning

1 8 JAN 2011

.oomScanning Room

Greg Ritchie
Major Development Assessments
Department of Planning
GPO Box 39
SYDNEY NSW 2001

Our Ref: 2010/0343
Your ref: MP10−0007 (Mod 2)
Contact: Theo Zotos 9821 9317

Date 14/01/11

Itflll/JIIIIIlIlllll/l/IflllIllJl
Dear Greg,

Re: Office of Water submission regarding application MP10−0007 and MP10_0008 MOD
2 − Basin 6 modification

l write in regards to the Office of Water submission which relates to the proposed development
of stormwater detention Basin 6, Len Waters Industrial Estate.

In light of the submission, Council would like to highlight some background information and
matters of consideration when the location of Basin 6 was determined.

Cabramatta Creek Basin Strategy− background
Detention Basin 6 forms part of a comprehensive drainage and detention system for the
Cabramatta Creek catchments. The detention basin strategy for Cabramatta Creek was
developed in the 1980's (Sinclair Knight, 1983; Kinhill, 1992). The objective of the basin strategy
is to ensure that flood flows throughout the catchment do not increase as a result of new
'Release Area' development identified within the catchment. In effect each basin needs to be
constructed at the specified storage capacity and performance in order to alleviate potentially
catastrophic flooding of downstream urbanised areas.

The review of Basin 6 (by Bewsher Consulting, 2006) was prompted by the construction of the
M7 Motorway which intersected the initial Basin 6 location. (Refer to Fig 1 below). During the
review, it became apparent that the location of Basin 6 would have to be selected in
consideration of;

i) the M7 Motorway, which reduced the storage capacity of the original basin location
ii) the approved Middleton Grange development, which limited the available storage on
the upstream (west) side of the motorway;
iii) a proposed east−west road that is to pass under the motorway bridge, which limits the
extent of flooding that may be permissible through the underpass;
iv) the extent of significant vegetation on the western side of the M7 corridor compared
to the eastern side at the Northern Creek/M7 underpass junction
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l i you do not understand this letter/appiication, please
ring the Teiephone interpreter Service (131 450) and
ask them to contact Cou!ncil (1300 362 170). Office
hours are 8.30 am to 5.00 pm, Monday to Friday.
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Ako ne razu!mijete eve pismo|aplikaci.iu, molimo
nazovite Slu2bu prevodilaca i tuma,Sa (Translating and
interpreting Service − na broi 131 450) i zamolite ih da
nazovu (}pc}inu (na 1300 362 170) Radno vrijeme je od
8 30 ujutro do 5 00 popodne, od ponedjeljka do petka

Wenn Sie diesen Brief/Antrag nicht verstehen können,
rufen Sie bitte den Telefon Dolmetscher Dienst
(Telephone interpreter Service) (131 450) an und
lassen Sie sich vom Personal mit dem Gemeinderat
(Council) in Verbindung setzen (1300 362 170).
Geschäftsstunden sind von 8:30 bis 17:00 Uhr,
montags bis freitags.

Av 5sv KaTah,aBalvsTs aurú Iqv sntoTohQ/ah−aan,
o−og na©aKaAOúpie va Ti"1AeeovQOsTS OTrlv
Taks9ovtKn Ynnpsola Atsppavé00v (131 450) Kat VQ
Toug (nidosis va entKOtVO~VÙoouV p8 TO AlpOTtK6
IuppoOhto (1300 362 170). Ta ypapela Tou sivat
avotXTá anó Tto, 8.30n.p. pP−ypt Ttz 5.00p.p. anó
asu]−~ápa péxpt Kat FlapQaKSud.
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GtneriGQANijm91n9tC−np..ngi~ GrLt9 1300 362 170)1

MACEDONIAN

AKO He ro pasómpaTe osa nucMO/annwKauwja, se
MOnHMe ga ce jaBMTe BO TenecpoHCKaTa npeBegyBaMKa
cnyx<6a Ha 131 450 N 3aMoneTe r14 ~.a CTanaT Be
KOHTaKT CO OHLUTMHaTa Ha 1300 362 170. PaÓOTHOTO
BpeMe e op, 8.30 HaCOT HayTpo go 5.00 MacoT
nonna#4He op, nOHe~enHMK AO neToK.

MALTESE

Jekk ma tifhimx din I−ittra/applikazzjoni, jekk joghgbok
cempel lis−Servizz ta' I−Interpretu bit−Telefon (131 450)
u itlobhom jikkuntattjaw il−Kunsill (1300 362 170).
I!−hinijiet ta' I−Uffiòòju huma mit−8.30a.m. sal−5.00p.m..
mit−Tnejn sal−Gimgha.

POLISH
Jesli nie rozumiesz tresci niniejszego pisma/podania,
zadzwon do Telefonicznego Biura Tfumaczy (Telephone
Interpreter Service) pod numer 131 450 I popros o
telefoniczne skontaktowanie sie z Rada Miejska. pod
numerem 1300 362 170. Godziny urzedowania:
08.30−17.00 od poniedziatku do pia.tku.

SERBIAN
AKO He pa3yMeTe OBo nMcMo/annMKau,Mjy, MOnl4MO
Bac Ra Ha3oBeTe TenecpOHCKy npeson~nasKy cay>K6y
(131 450) ~ saMonMTe MX Ra KOHTaKTMpajy OnLUTMHy
(1300 362 170). Pa~,Ho apeMe je og 8.30 yjyTpo ~,o
5.00 nonoAHe, on noHegeTbKa p,o neTKa.

SPANISH
Si Ud. no entiende esta carta/solicitud, por favor
ilame al Servicio Telefónico de Interpretes (131 450)
y pídales que llamen a la Municipalidad (Council) al
1300 362 170. Las horas de oficina son de 8:30 am
a 5:00 pm, de lunes a viernes.
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n wc−s−r ~ir~ eawm−rge− n en (131 450) an Mr r
à e s4r emno−s (1300 362 170) ~− mre ser e

T URKISH

Bu mektubu veya müracaati anlayamazsaniz, lütfen
Telefon Tercüme Servisi'ne (131 450) telefon ederek
Belediye lle (1300 362 170) iliskiye gecmelerini
isteyiniz Calsma saatleri Pazartesi − Cuma günleri
arasinda sabah saat 8:30 iie aksam 5:00 arasidir.

tTA}L.,~iLN
Se non comprendi questa iettera/questo modulo di
domanda, telefona al Servizio traduzioni e interpreti al
numero 131 450 chiedendo di essere messo in
contatto con il Comune (telefono 1300 362 170).
Orario d'ufficio: ore 8.30 −17.00, dal lunedi al venerdi.

VIETNAMESE
Náu không hidu thu'/ddn này, xin Qu9 Vi ggi cho
Telephone Interpreter Service (Dich V.u Thông Dich
Qua Diên Thoai), sa 131 450, va nho ho liên lac v6'i
Council (H.ôi DÔng), só 1300 362 170. Gio làm vi~.c la
8 gio 30 sang dên 5 gia 00 chiåu, ThOr Hal dan ThO'Sau.



The Basin 6 review subsequently recommended that Basin 6 be logically located on the eastern
side of M7 Motorway. Council adopted the 2006 Basin 6 review, and rezoned the site to SP2
Infrastructure (drainage). Council has also purchased the land in order to facilitate its future
construction and dedication as Council asset.

Fig 1. Original location of Basin 6
Source: Review of Cabramatta Creek Basin Strategy Bewsher Consulting Pty Ltd July 2006

M7 Motorway
The M7 Motorway has had a major impact upon the connectivity between the Western Sydney
Parklands and Hinchinbrook Creek. Further to this, the construction of the Hoxton Park Airport
and subsequent piping of a length of Northern Creek also reduces the effectiveness of this
location as an ecological link to Hinchinbrook Creek. Taking this into account, the subsequent
zoning of the airport site has not incorporated buffer zones in line with a categorised creek,
considering that a natural creek line was not in existence. The rezoning was endorsed by the
Department of Planning in 2008.

Metropolitan Development Program (MDP)
The former Hoxton Park Airport land, Elizabeth Hills to the north and Middleton Grange were all
nominated on the NSW State Government's MDP. Since the closure of the airport, significant
development has, and continues to be carried out within this precinct that will provide for over
1,600 jobs and over 3,500 dwellings. A large proportion of land within this precinct and wider
Hoxton Park Area release could not be delivered without the implementation of the Cabramatta
Creek basin strategy, including Basin 6.

Land use zoning
During the rezoning of Hoxton Park Airport (2008), Council consulted with the DECCW and a
number of state authorities. The land on which Basin 6 footprint is proposed was zoned SP2
Infrastructure (Drainage) in order to facilitate the construction of the basin and associated
drainage works.
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Fig.2 Aerial photomap and land use zoning map extract
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Environmental Outcomes in the area
During the rezoning of the former Hoxton Park Airport (now Len Waters Estate) and Elizabeth
Hills, significant environmental outcomes have been secured through the implementation of
land use zones and Voluntary Planning Agreements. As evidenced from the zoning map extract
above, Council is to secure a corridor of open space (zoned RE1 Public Recreation) along
Hinchinbrook Creek to the Western Sydney Parklands to the north.

Through the execution of VPA's with three landowners in the area, Council has secured various
works within the RE1 land including the local creeks and tributaries including water quality
measures, contamination audits, weed removal, rehabilitation of existing vegetation and
revegetation of core areas. These works are implemented via various VMP's, vegetation offset
work plans and VPA's.

Northerly connection
It should be noted that an existing ecological link under the M7 (noted as M7 underpass on
zoning map extract) has significantly more value than the Basin 6 underpass site. This is
attributed to land on either side of the underpass being within the Western Sydney Parklands,
the proximity of the link to existing water bodies. The effectiveness of this ecological link will be
increased via the planned revegetation and restoration works secured through the VPA
associated with the development of Elizabeth Hills and through planned revegetation works in
this location by the Western Sydney Parklands Trust.

Future Works
The M7 underpass at the Basin 6 location is also the subject of future road construction linking
Middleton Grange to the Len Waters Industrial Estate. This underpass road link was initiated
through the master planning of Middleton Grange (throughout 2001−2004) and will serve as an
important link between these newly emerging urban areas.



As the environmental significance of the Northern Creek link is already substantially
compromised, and the endorsed location of Basin 6 has been determined as optimum by
various reports and studies, Liverpool Council does not see any a merit in requesting the
relocation of Basin 6.

Should you require any further information on this matter, please do not hesitate to contact
Theo Zotos on 9821 9317.

Yours sincerely,

Theo Zotos
Executive Planner


